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Directors’ report

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of Busy Bee Finance PLC
{the company) and the consolidated financial statements of the group of which it is the parent, for the year
ended 30 November 2023,

Principal activities

The company was incorporated on 31 July 2018, The company was formed prinapally to act as a finance and
investment company, in particular, to finance or re-finance the funding requirements of related companics
within rhe Busy Bee Group.

Performance review

During the year under review, the group registered a profir before maxation of € 610k, 35% higher than the
profit of € 453k registered in the previous financial year.

During a year of continued inflationary pressures mainly driven by the Russia — Ukraine conflict, focus m
improve efficiencies throughout the operations was paramount. Furthermore, the Group has undergonce an
internal reorganisaton to ensure resources are effectively allocared. This focus led wa 10% improvement in
the Gross Profir Margin, reaching 38%.

The Group registered a 7% increase in revenue, reaching € 6.76million. The group’s revenue largely
originates through companies forming part of the Busy Bee Limited group, which acr as retail outlets for the
products produced by the manufacturing subsidiary of the Group. The revenue growth is attriburable to the
first full year of operations of a new oudet in Sliema operated by one of the related companies and
substantial increase in outside earering events, surpassing pre covid levels.

The group gencrated an operating profit of € 905k (2022: € 87k), originating mainly from the food
manufacturing activity as well as tental income and royalty fees charged to other related partics.

Earnings per share is recorded ar €9.02 (2022: € 8.93),

At 30 November 2023, total assets amounted to € 17.9million (2022: € 17 2million) and equity of the group
amounted to € 9.7million (2022: € 7.9million).

The directors consider the company and the group o be a going concern,
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The company is exposed to risks inherent 1o its operation and can be summarised as follows:

Strategy risk

Risk management falls under the responsibility of the board of directors. The board is condnuously analysing
its risk management strategy to ensure that risk is adequately identified and managed. The audit committee
regulatly reviews the tisk profile adopted by the board of dircctors.

Operational risks

The company's revenue is mainly derived from interest charges and setvice fecs charged to related parties and
hence the company is heavily dependent on the performance of the Busy Bee Group. The management
regularly reviews the financial performance of the Busy Bee Group of Companies to ensure thar there is
sufficient liquidity to sustain its operations.

Legislative risks

The company is governed by 4 number of laws and regulations. Failure to eomply could have finanecial and
reputational implications and could materially affecr the company’s ability to operate. The company has
embedded operating policies and procedures to ensure compliance with existing legislation.

Financial risk management and exposures

MNote 28 to the financial statements provides a derailed analysis of the financial risk to which the group and
company are exposed.

Diversity and inclusion

We aim to promote and embed diversity and inclusion into our culture, values and everything we do both
within Busy Bee as well as in the environment in which we operate.

Health and safety

The maintenance of a safe place of work and business for our employees, customers and visitors s a key
responsibility for all managers and members of staff. Busy Bee is commitred to proacrively manage healrh and
safety risk through the identifieation, assessment and mitigation of hazards that may otherwise resulr in injury,
fire events and operational failure.

The directors remain committed to maintmining the group's preparedness for emerging and foresceable risks
in ensuring health and safery compliance.

Employees

We are committed to an inclusive culture where our people can be confident that their views matter, their
workplace is an environment free from bias, discrimination and harassment, and where they can see that
advancement 15 based on merit,

People are at the core of our business. The focus of our people plan is to ensure we have a workforce
that is highly skilled in ensuring that the quality that Busy Bee 1s renowned for always remains at its highest
levels and that it translates into successful outcomes for our customers and our business, Our aim is to
build a strong employee value proposition that atracts the best talent with a diverse background which
in turn enriches our business culture,
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Dividends and reserves

The direcrors do not recommend rthe payment of a dividend and propose to transfer the profic for the vear o
LeSCIVEs.

Directors

The dirccrors of the company during the year were:

Brian Friggieri
Geoffrey Friggieri
Robert Ancilleri
Charles Scermn

In accordance with the company’s Articles of Association, the presenr directors remain in office.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

At the date of making this report the directors confirm the following:

- As far as each director is aware, there 15 no relevane informavon needed by the independent auditor in
connection with preparing the audit report of which the independent auditor is unaware, and

= Each direcror has raken all steps thar they oughr to have raken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant information needed by the independent auditor in connection with preparing the
report and to establish that the independent auditor is aware of that information.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The Companies Act, Cap 386 requires the ditectors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company as at the end of the
reporting period and of the profic or loss of their operadons for thar period. In preparing those financial
statements, the direcrors are required to

- adopr the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume thar the group and the company will
continue in business;

- selecr suitable accounting policies and rhen apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on the accruals basis; and

- value separately the components of asset and liability items,

The direcrors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the proup and the company, and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, Cap 386. This responsibility
includeés designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and faic
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
They are also responsible tor safeguarding the assets of the group and the company, and for taking reasanable
steps for the preventon and detection of fraud and other irregulariries.
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Auditor

The auditor Grant Thornton has intimated irs willingness to continue in office and a resolution proposing its
reappointment will be put to the Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the board of dircctors and signed on ies behalf by:

a. o

Charles Scerri — Brian Fr
Chairman Director

Registered address:
Busy Bee Group
Zone 4, Mdina Road
Mriehel

Barkirkara CBD 4010
Malea

28 March 2024
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Corporate governance - statement of compliance

Introduction

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malm Stock Exchange require qualifying companies admited o
Prospects MTF ro observe relevanr corporate governance standards, in this case the Code of Principles of
Good Corporate Governance (the code).

The board of dircctors (the board or the directors) of Busy Bee Finance PLC (the company) acknowledges
that although the code does not dictate or prescribe mandarory rules, compliance with the principles of good
corporate governance recommended in the code is in the best interests of the company, its sharcholders and
other stakeholders.

The company’s decision-making structure is designed ro meer the company requirements and to ascerrain thar
decision making is subject to the checks and balances where this is appropriate.

General

Good corporate governance is the responsibility of the board as a whole, and has been, and remains a priotity
for the company. In deciding on the most appropriate manner in which to implement the code, the board took
cognisance of the company’s size, nature and operations, and is of the opinien that the adopton of certain
mechanisms and scructures which may be suitable for companies with extensive operations may not be
appropriate for the company, The limirations of size and scope of operadons inevitably impact on the
structures required to implement the code, withour however diluting the effectiveness thereof.

The board considers that, to the extent otherwise disclosed herein, the company has generally been in
compliance with the code throughout the period under review.

This statement shall now ser our the structures and processes in place within the company and how rhese
cffectively achieve the goals set out in the code for the period under review. For this purpose, this statement
will make reference to the pertinent principles of the code and then ser our the manner in which the board
considers that these have been adhered to, and where it has not,

For the avordance of doubt, reference in this statement to compliance with the principles of the code means
compliance with the cade’s main principles.

The directors believe that for the financial year under review the company has generally complied with the
requirements for each of the code’s main principles. Further information in this respect is provided hereunder.

Principle one: the company’s board of directors

The directors report that for the financial vear under review, they have provided the necessary leadership in
the overall direction of the company and have performed their responsibilitics for the efficient and smooth
running of the company with honesty, competence and integrity. The board is composed of members who are
fit and proper o direcr the business of the company with honesty, competence and mneegrity. All the members
of the board are fully aware of, and conversant with, the starurory and regulatory requirements conneeted o
the business of the company. The board is accountable for its performance and thar of its delegares o
sharcholders and other relevant stakeholders.

The board has throughout the period under review adopted prudent and effectve systems which ensure an
open dialogue berween the board and senior management.

The company has a structure that ensures 2 mix of exccutive and non-executive directors and thar enables the
board to have direct information about the company’s performance and business activities.
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Principle two: the company’s chairman and chief executive officer

The chairman who acts as an independent non-executive director, exercises independent judgement and is
responsible o lead the board and set its agenda, whilst also ensuring thar the directors receive precise, dmely
and objective information so that they can take sound decisions and effectively monitor the performance of
the company. The chairman is also responsible for ensuring cffective communication with shareholders and
ensuring active engagement by all members of the board for discussion of complex or contentious issues.

The role of the chief exccutive officer (CEQ) is occupied by an individual who is an executive member of the
board of dirccrors.

The CEO is responsible to drive and deliver performance wirhin strategic goals and business plans agreed by
the board. He actively leads senior management in the day-to-day running of the company and execution of
the agreed strategy. He takes decisions in all matters affecting the operations, pecformance, and strategy of the
business, excepr for those matters reserved for the board or specifically delegated by the board to its
COMIMIEECs.

The position of the Chairman and that of the CEO are occupied by differenr individuals. Their respective
positions have been defined with specific roles rendering these posil:ic-ns completely sepatate from one
another. This ensures a clear division of r-::pr.mul:jhncq between the running of the Board and the CEO’s
responsibility of management of the company’s performance. The separation of roles of the Chairman and the
CEQO avoids concentration of authority and power in one individual.

Principle three: composition of the board

The board is composed of four members, with two executive and two non-executive dircctors, The non-
executive directors are independent from the company. It is responsible for the overall long-term strategy and
general policies of the company, of monitoring the company’s systems of control and financial reporting and
communicaring effeceively with the marker as and when necessary.

The board of directors consists of the following:
- Charles Scerti = Chairman/Non-executve director
Robert Ancilleri — Non-executive Director
- Bran Friggieri — Direcror
- Geoffrev Friggier: — Direcror
In accordance with the provisions of the company’s Articles of Association, the appointment of dircctors to
the board 1s exclusively reserved to the company’s sharcholders, exceptin so far as appointment is made by the
board to fill a casual vacancy, which appoinmment would be valid unil the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meering of the company following such an appointment. Mr Charles Scerri and Mr Robert Ancillen
are considered by the board to be independent non-executive members of the board.
None of the independent non-executive directors:
a) is or has been emploved in any capacity with the company;
b} has or had a significant business relationship wirh the company;
) has received significant additional remuneration from the company;
d) has close famuly tes with any of the company™s exceutive dircctors or senior employees;

¢) has served on the board for more than owelve consccurive yvears; or

£} is or has been within the last three vears an ¢éngagement partner or a member of the audit ream of the
present or former external auditor of the company.
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Each non-executive director has declared in writing to the board rhar he undereakes:
a)  to maintain in all circumstances his independence of analysis, decision and action;

b) not to seck or accept any unrcasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his
independence; and

c) rto clearly express his opposition in the event that he finds thar a decision of the board may harm rthe
company.

Principle four: the responsibilities of the board

The board acknowledges irs statutory mandate to conduct the administration and management of the company.
The board, in fulfilling this mandate and discharging its duty of stewardship of the company, assumes
responsibility for the company's strategy and decisions with respect to the issue, scrvicing and redemption of
its bonds in issue, and for monitoring that its opcrations are in conformity with its commitments towards
bondholders, shareholders, and all relevant laws and reguladons. The board is also responsible for ensuring
that the company establishes and operates effecove inrernal conteol and management infarmarion sysrems and
that it communicates effectively with the marker.

Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at any time on any aspect of their duties and
responsihi]itles, at the comp-m:.'*s expense,

The Awddit Comerretee

The Audit Committee's primary objective is to assist the board in fulfilling its responsibilities: in dealing with
issues of nsk, conrrol and governance; and review the financial reporting processes, financial policies and
internal control structure, During the financial vear under review, the Audic Commirttee met four times.,

Although the Audit Commitree is set up ar the level of the company its main rasks are also relared 1o the
activities of the company.

The board has set formal terms of establishment and the terms of rveference of the Audic Commitree that
establish its composition, role and function, the parameters of its remit as well as the basis for the processes
thar it is required o comply with, The Audic Commitee is a sub-committee of the board and is directy
responsible and accountable ro the board.

Furthermare, the Audit Committee has the role and function of scrutinising and evaluating any proposed
transaction to be entered into by the company and a related party, to ensure that the execution of any such
transacrion is at arm's length and on a commercial basis and ulomacely in the best interests of the company.

As ar the date hereof, the Audir Commirtree is composed of 3 members:

- Robert Ancilleri = Chairman
- Geoffrey Friggieri — Member
- (Charles Seerrl — Member

Mr Robert Ancilleri and Mr Charles Scerri are non-executive directors and qualified accountants, whao the
board considers as independent and competent in accounting,
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Tntermel conteof

The board is ulumately responsible for the company's system of internal controls and for reviewing iws
effectveness. The directors are aware that internal control systems are designed o manage, rather than
climinate, the tisk of failure to achieve business abjectives, and can only provide reasonable, and nor absolure,
assurance against normal business risks.

During the financial year under review the company operated a system of internal controls which provided
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations coveting all conwols, ncluding financial and
operational controls and compliance with laws and regulations. Processes arc in place for idennifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks facing the company.

Other key features of the system of internal control adopted by the company in respect of its own internal
conttol as well as the control of its subsidiarics and affiliates are as follows:

{a) Control environment

The company is committed to the highest standards of business conduct and seeks to maintain these standards
across all of its operatons, company policies and employee procedures are in place for the reporting and
resolution of fraudulent activities. The company has an appropriate organisanonal structure for planning,
execuring, cantrolling and monitoring business operations in order ro achieve company objectives.

{I5) Risk identification

The board, with the assistance of the management eam, is responsible for the identification and evaluaton of
key risks applicable to the areas of business in which the company and its subsidiaries are involved. These risks
are assessed on a continual basis.

{c) Information and communication

Functional, operational and financial reporting standards are applicable to all entities of the company. These
are supplemented by operating standards set by the board. Systems and procedures ate in place to identify,
control and to repott on the major risks intludjng credic tisk, clmngcs in the market priccs of financial
nscruments, liquidity, operanonal error and fraud, The board receives periodic management information giving
comprehensive analysis of financial and business performance including vanances against budgets.

Periodie strategic reviews which include consideration of long-rerm financial projections and the evaluation of
business alternatives are regularly convened by the board. An annual budger is prepared and performance
against this plan is actively monitored and teported to the boatd.

Geargral mestings

The general meeting is the highest decision-making body. A general meeting is called by fourteen days' notice
and it is conducred in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) deals with whar is termed as "ordinary business", namely, the receiving
or adoprion of the annual financial statements, the declaration of a dividend, if any, the appointment of the
auditors, board autherisation to fix the auditors’ emoluments and the election of directors. Other business
which may be transacted at a general meeting (including at the AGM) will be dealt with as special business.

No business shall be transacted at a general meeting of the company unless a quorum of members is present
at the oime the meeting proceeds to business. The quorum ar any sharcholder's meeting shall be any number of
members holding not less than seventy-five pereent of the issued paid up shares conferring voting rights in the
company. Provided that if within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum s not present,
the meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next weck at the same time or place or to such other day
and such other dme and place as all the directors may determine and if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is
not present as described above, the member/s present shall constitute a quoram providing they hold not less
than fifty percent of the issued paid up shares conferting voting rights in the company. Each shave shall entite
the holder thereof to one vote.
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A sharcholder who cannor participate in the general meerng can appaint a proxy by written or clecrronic
notification to the board.

Every sharcholder represented in person or by proxy is entitled to ask questions which are pertinent and related
to items on the agenda of the general meeting and to have such questions answered by the directors or by such
persons as the directors may delegare for thar purpose,

Principle five: board meetings

The directors meet regularly to dispatch the business of the board, The directors are notified of forthcoming
meetings by the company secretary with the issue of an agenda and supporting board papers, which are
circulated in advance of the meeting. Minutes are prepared during board meenngs recording faithfully
attendance, and resolutions taken at the meeting. The chairman ensures that all relevant issues are on the
agenda supported by all available information, whilst encouraging the presentation of views pertinent to the
subject matter and giving all directors every opportunity to contribute to relevant issues on the agenda. The
agenda on the board seeks to achieve a balance between long-term strategic and short-term performance issues.

The board meets as often as frequently required in line with the nature and demands of the business of the
company. Directors attend meetings on a frequent and regular basis and dedicate the necessary time and
attention to their duties as directors of the company. The following directors attended board meetings as
follows:

Name Designation Number of meetings
Charles Scerni Chairman/Non-exccunve director 4 outofd
Robert Ancilleri MNon-executive director 4 ourof4
Brian Friggieri Exccutive director 4 out of 4
Geoffrey Friggierd Executive director 4 outof 4

Principle six: information and professional development

As part of succession planning and employee retention, the Board and CEO ensure that the company
implements appropriate schemes to recruit, retain and motvate employees and senior management and keep a
high morale amongst employees.

Principle seven: evaluation of the board’s performance

Under the present circumstances, the board ddes not consider it necessary to appoint 4 committee to carry out
a performance evaluarion of its role, as the board's performance is always under the scrutiny of the shareholders
of the company.

Principle eight: remuneration and nomination committees

The board of directors considers that the size and operation of the issuer does not warrane the serting up of
nomination and remuneration committee. The issuer will not be incotporating a nominarion commitece.
Appointments to the board of directors are determined by the sharcholders of the issuer in accordance with
the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association. The issuer considers that the members of the board
possess the level of skill, knowledge and experience expected in terms of the code,

Principle nine and ten: relations with shareholders and with the market

Pursuant to the company's statutory obligatons in terms of the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the Laws of
Malra), the Annual Report and Financial Statements, the election of directors and approval of directors' fees,
the appointment of the auditors and the authorisation of the direcrors to ser the audirors fees, and other special
business, are proposed and approved at the company's Annual General Meeting,

With respect to the company's bondhaolders and the macket in general, during the financial year under review,
there was no need to 1ssue any company announcements o the marker. Bondholders are kept updated through
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the publication of the annual report and financial statements and by publishing irs results on a six-monchly
basis during the period, and through company announcements to the market in gencral.

Principle eleven: conflicts of interest

All of the directors of the company, except for Mr Charles Scerri and Mr Robert Ancilleri, are executive officers
of the company. The executive directors, Mr Geoffrey Friggicri and Mr Brian Friggieri, have a dicect beneficial
interest in the share capital of the company, and as such are susceptible to conflicts atising between the
potentially diverging interests of the sharcholders and the company. During the financial year under review,
no private intercses or duaties unrelated to the company were disclosed by the directors which were or could
have likely placed any of them in conflice with any interests in, or duties towards the company,

The Audit Committee has the task to ensure that any potential conflices of interest are resalved in the best
interests of the company. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of Artcle 143 of the Companies Act
(Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malt), every direcror who is in any way, whether direcdy or indirectly, interested in
4 contract of proposed contract with the company is under the duty to fully declare his interest in the relevant
transaction to the board at the first possible opportunity. He will nor be entitled to vote on matters relating to
the proposed transaction and only partics who do not have any conflict in considering, the mateer will
patticipate in the consideration of the proposed transaction (unless the board finds no objection to the presence
of such dircctor with conflict of interese).

Principle twelve: corporate social responsibility

The company secks to adhere to sound Principles of Corporate Social Responsibility in its management
practices and is commitred to enhance the quality of life of all stakeholders and of the employees of the
company.

The board is mindful of the environment and its responsibility within the community in which it operartes.

In carrying on its business, the company is fully aware and at the forefront to preserving the environment and
continuously review its policies aimed ar respecting the environment and encouraging social responsibility and
accouneability,

In conclusion, the board considers thar the company has generally been in compliance with the principles
throughout the period under review as befits a company of this size and nature. Non-compliance with the

principles and the reasons thereof have been identified above.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalt on 28 March 2024 by:

‘hﬁﬂw Yl

Charles Scerri Brian Frigeieri
Chairman Director
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Statements of profit or loss
Motes The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € £ €

Revenue 5 6,755,683 6,322 269 486,000 486,000
Cost of sales (4,218,277) (4,560,178) < -
Gross profit 2,537,406 1,762,091 486,000 486,000
Administrative expenses (1,632,144) (1,675,070) (541,575) (B08,727)
Operating profit {loss) 905,262 87,021 {55,575) {122,727)
Interest income 6 1,624 - 269,880 270,152
Movernent in fair value of
investment property 15 - 525,000 -
Other income 7 20,282 156,553 " 52,377
Finance costs 8 (317,224) (315,450) (251,332) (250,000)
Profit (loss) before tax 9 609,044 453,124 (37,027) (50,198)
Tax (expensa) income 10 (159,177) (5,795) 6,033 17,569
Profit (loss) fer the year 450,767 447,329 (30,994) {32,628)

Earnings per share 11 9.02 8.95
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Statements of financial position

Assets
Non-current

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use asset
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment property
Deferred tax

Loans and receivables

Current

Inventories

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
Current tax receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Notes

12
13
14
16
15
17
18

18
18
20

21

i4
The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ 3 € €
1,552,079 1,679,242 = -
6,269,808 6,722,092 - -
541,584 550,966 - -
- - 102,400 102,400
4,410,000 4,410,000 - -
1,304 835 1,450,727 25,688 19,655
429,456 50,535 2,802,679 2,460,000
14,507,762 14,763,562 5,930,767 5,582,055
738,461 788,609 - -
25,181 - 25,181 -
2,372,985 1,305,552 571,984 435,394
230 292 2,535 2,535
298,382 316,397 101,860 97,225
3,435,239 2,410,850 701,560 535,154
17,943,001 17,174,412 6,632,327 6,117,209
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Statements of financial position - continued

Equity

Capital and reserves

Called up issued share capital
Share premium
Shareholder's loan

Retained earnings (accumulated
lossas)

Revaluation reserve
Total equity

Liabilities
Mon-current

Debt securities in issue
Long-term borrowings
Lease liability

Current

Debt securities in issue
Short-term barrowings
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

MNotes

22

23

24
24
26

24
25
27

15
The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

€ € € €

50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
50,752 50,752 50,752 50,752
4,330,783 4,330,783 600,000 600,000
4,381,982 3,912,069 (103,605) (72,601)
870,365 808,511 - .
9,692,882 9,242,115 507,157 628,151
4,882,225 4,864,563 4,882 225 4,864,563
778,128 564,059 288,967 5
506,002 501,390 . :
6,256,355 6,020,012 5171,192 4,864,563
17,662 17,662 17,662 17,662
90,379 60,243 25,181 ;
1,885,723 1,834,380 821,135 606,833
1,093,764 1,912,285 863,978 624,495
8,250,119 7,932,297 6,035,170 5,489,058
17,943,001 17174412 6,632,327 6,117,200

The financial statements on pages 13 to 49 were approved by the board of dicectors, authorised for issue on

28 March 2024 and signed on irs behalf by

ST

-
Charles Scerri

Chairman

\% M O Vi

Brian Friggieri
Director
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Al 1 December 2021

Profit for the year
Total comprehensive
income

Transfer of excess
depraciation
At 30 November 2022

At 1 December 2022
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive

income

Transfer of excess
depreciation

16
Statement of changes in equity - the group
Called up
issued
share Share Shareholder’s Retained Revaluation

capital premium lean earnings reserve Total

€ € € € £ €

50,000 20,752 4,330,783 3429817 933,434 8,794,786

- - - 447,329 - 447 329

- - - 447 329 - 447,329

- - - 34,923 (34,923) -

50,000 50,752 4,330,783 3,912,069 898,511 9,242 115

50,000 50,752 4,330,783 3,912,069 898,511 8,242 115

- - - 450,767 - 450,767

. . = 450,767 . 450,767

- - - 19,148 (19,146} -

50,000 50,752 4,330,783 4,381,982 879,365 9,692,862

At 30 November 2023

Retained carnings include current and prior period results as disclosed in the statement of profit or loss.
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Statement of changes in equity - the company

Called up
issued
share Share Shareholder's Accumulated
capital premium loan losses Total
€ € € € €
At 1 December 2021 50,000 50,752 600,000 (39,972) 660,780
Loss for the year - - - (32,629) (32,629)
Total comprehensive loss - - - (32,629) (32,629)
At 30 November 2022 50,000 50,752 600,000 (72,601) 628,151
At 1 Dacember 2022 50,000 50,752 600,000 {72,601) 628,151
Loss for the year - - - (30,994) (30,994)
Total comprehensive loss - - - (30,994) (30,994)
At 30 November 2023 50,000 50,?5‘1 600,000 (103,595) 597 157

Accumulated losses include current and prior period resulrs as disclosed in the starement of profic or lass,
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Statements of cash flows
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Operating activities
Profit (loss) before tax 609,944 453,124 (37,027} (50,198)
Adjustments for:
Gain on revaluation of investment property - (525,000) - -
Depreciation 521.694 910,743 - -
Amortisation 36,545 35,408 - -
Bonds issue costs amortisation 17.662 17,662 17,662 17.662
Pravision for expected credit loss 26,217 - 34,550 -
Finance costs 317,224 315,450 251,332 250,000
Interest income (1,624) - {269,880) {270,152)
Tax paid (2,255) {4,691) = =
Operating profit (loss) before working
capital movements 1,525,407 B02,696 (3,363) (52,688)
Mavement in Inventories 50,148 (38,324) - -
Movement in frade and other receivables {1,110,967) (359,451) 214,256 191,016
Movement in trade and other payables 52,922 163,312 128,634 114,112
Cash flows generated from operations 517,510 568,233 339,527 252,440
interest paid (22,293) (20,575) & -
Net cash from generated from operating
activities 495,217 547 658 339,527 252,440
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {69,410} (97,880) - -
Acquisition of intangible assets - (18,369) - -

Net cash used in investing activities {69,410) (116,249)
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Statements of cash flows — continued
Note The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ £ 3 £

Financing activities
Proceeds from bank lean 314,148 - 314,148 -
Repayment of bank loan {69,943) (69,470) (1,624)
Interest payment for debt securities (249,663) (250,431) (249,663) (250,431)
Advances to related parties (397,753} - (397,753) -
Paymenis for lease liability (40,611) {40,344)
Net cash used in financing activities (443,822) {360,245) (334,892) {250,431)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (18,015) 71,164 4,635 2,009
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 316,397 245,233 97,225 95,216
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 21 298,382 316,397 101,860 07,225
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Nature of operations

Busy Bee Finance PLC is a publie limited liability company incorporated in Malta. "The company’s registered
address is Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Birkickara CBD 4010, Malta. The company was formed
principally to act as a finance and investment company, in particular the financing or re-financing of the
funding requirements of related companies within the Busy Bee Group. The company was incorporated on
31 July 2018,

The company is 2 public company whose bonds are publicly listed and rraded on the Malea Stock Exchange.

The parent company is Busy Bee Limired with registered office and principal place of business at Busy Bee
Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Mrichel, Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 4010, Malra,

2 General information, statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and going concern

The financial seatements of the company and the consolidated financial statements of the group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issucd by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) and as adopted by the European Union (EU), and in accordance with
the Companies Act, Cap 386.

The ulnmare parent company of the group is Busy Bee Limited, with registered office and principal place of
business at Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Central Business Districr, Mrichel, Birkirkaca CBD 1040,
Malta. Busy Bee Limited prepares consolidated financial statements which are available for publie inspection
at the Malta Business Registey,

The financial statements are presented in euro (€), which is also the functional currency of the company and
the group.

The financial staremients of the have been drawn up on a going concera basis. At the reporning date, the
company had net current liabilities of € 162,418 (2022: € 89 341).

However, of the company’s total liabilitics € 554,537 (2022: € 417,792) was owed to related parries (sec note
27). The direetars have obtained assurance that the parent company and other relared parties will not call for
payment of the amount due before thied party balances are settled.

Based on the foregoing, the directors confirm that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial starements
on a going concern basis.
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3 MNew or revised standards or interpretations
31 New standards adopted at 1 January 2022

Amendments to IFRSs thar became mandatorily effective in 2022, have no material impact on the group and
company’s financial results or position. Accordingly, the group and company have made no changes to i
accounting policies in the year ended 30 November 2023,

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet
effective and have not been adopted early by the group and company

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, several new but not yer effective Setandards,
amendments o existing standards, and Ineerprerations have been published by the IASB. None of these
standards, amendmenrs or interprerations have been adopted early by the group and company.

Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning on or
after the effective date of the pronouncement. New standards, amendments and interpretations not adopred
in the cutrent year, have not been disclosed as they are not expected to have a material impact on the group
and company’s financial statements.

4 Significant accounting policies
4.1 Basis for preparation

The group and company’s financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and under the historical
cost convention. Monetary amounts are expressed in curo (€) and are rounded to the nearese euro.

The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in the previous period.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the Binancial statements of the companies
comprising the group as derailed in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4.2 Presentation of financial statements

The consolidared financial statements are presented in accordance with 1AS 1 Prerewtation af Financial Siatensents
(revised 2007). The group and company did not have any items classified as ‘other comprehensive income’,

4.3 Basis of consolidation

The group’s financial starements consolidate those of the parent company and all of its subsidiarics at 30
November 2023, Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies, The group obtains and exercises control through more than half of the voting tghes, All
subsidianies have a reporting dare of 30 November.

All eransactions and balances berween group companics are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on rransactions between group companies. Where unrealised losses including depreciation
expense on Intra-group assct sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from a group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the group.

Profir or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the financial starements of the companies set
out in note 16.
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4.4 Business combinations

The group applies the acquisiion method in accounting for business combinations, The consideration
rransferred by the group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, labilites incurred and the equity interests issucd by the group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or liability arising from a conringent consideration arrangement. Acquisiion costs are
expensed as incurred.

Lf the group acquires a controlling interest in 2 business in which it previously held an equity interest, thar
cquity interest is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date with any resulting gain ot loss recognised in
profic or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriace.

Consideration transferred as part of a business combination does not include amounts related to the
settlement of pre-existing relationships. The gain or loss on the settlement of any pre-existng relatonship is

recognised in the statements of profit or loss.

Assets acquited and liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition-dare fair values.

4.5 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the group and
company for goods supplied or services rendered, excluding Value Added Tax (VAT) and trade discounts.

To determine whether ro recognise revenue, the group and company follow a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifving the performance obligations

3. Determining the transacrion price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligadon(s) are sarisfied.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when performance obligations have been sansfied
and the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled to can be measured reliably.

The group and company evaluare all contractual arrangements entered into and evaluate the nature of the
promised goods or services, and right and obligations under the arrangement, in derermining rhe narure
of its performance obligations, Where such performance obligations are capable of being distiner and are
distinet in the context of the contract, the consideration the group or company expect to be entitled under
the arrangement is allocated to each performance obligation based on their rclative stand-alonce sclling
prices. Revenue is recognised ar an amount egual o the rtransacton price allocated to the specific
performance obligation when it is satisfied, cither ar a point in time or over tume, as applicable, based on
the pattern of transfer of control,

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a tdme basis, by reference to the princpal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is rhe rate that exactly discounts the estimared future cash receiprs through
the expected life of the financial asser to the asser's net carrying amount.

Food and beverage revenues

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is 1'ecogniscd when or as the group transfers control of the
assets to the customer, Control is transferred at a point in time, when the customer takes undisputed
delivery of the goods.
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Rental income
Operating leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or series of
payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantally all the risks and rewards incidental o ownership of the underlying asser and
classified as an operating lease if it does not.

Lease income from operating leases shall be recognised in income on a straight linc basis over the lease
[Crmm.

4.6 Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised in the statements of profit or loss upon utlisaton of the service or ar the date of their
ol

4.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atrribueable to the acquisition, construcrion or production of a qualifving asser are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asser for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in ‘finance
COSLS’.

4.8 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in curo (€), which is also the group and company’s functional curtency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the group and company using the
exchange rates prevailing ar the dates of the wansactons (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from rhe sertlement of such rransactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in Foreign currency at vear-end exchange rates are recognised in the statements of profic or loss.

Non-monetary items are not reteanshated ar vear-end and are measured ar hisrorical cost (rranslated using the
exchange rares ar the transaction dare).

4.9 Intangible assets

An mangible asset is recognised if it is probable thar the expected future economic benefits thar are
attributable to the assetr will flow to the group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially measured ar cost. Expenditure on an intangible asset i1s recognised as an
expense in the period when it is incurred unless it forms part of the cost of the asset that meers the
recognition criteria,

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed to determine whether it is finite or indcfinite. Intangible
assets with a fimite useful life are amortised. Amortsation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the
cost of mtangible assets less any estmated residual value, over their estomated useful lives. The
amortisation merhod applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The following useful life is applied:

Softwarea 25%
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Amortisation has been included within ‘administrative expenses’ in the profit or loss,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not systematically amortised and are rested for impairment
annually whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The useful life of these
asscts is reviewed annually to determine whether their indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable,

Intangible assers are derecognised on disposal or when no future eeonomic benefits are expecred from their
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition represent the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and are included in profir or loss in the period of derccognirion.

The brand compriscs the ‘Busy Bee' brand name which was acquired from the parent company of the group.
The brand does not have a finite life and is measured at cost less accumulated impaiement losses. The brand is
regarded a5 having an indefinite life, since based on all relevane factors, there is no foreseeable limit w the
period over which the asset is expected to generate cash inflows.

4.10 Property, plant and equipment

The group’s property, plant and equipment are classified into the following classes; long leasehold
property, plant and machinery, office equipment, motor vehicle, furniture and fittings and fixtures.
Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Except for long leaschold property, they are
subsequenty stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and buildings are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes, Subsequent to inidal recognidon, long leasehold property is stated at fair value ar the date of the
revaluaton less any subscquent accumulated dcprecmtmn and subsequent impairment losses. Revalued
amounts are fair values based on appraisals prepared by external professional valuers once every two years
or mare frequently if market factors indicate a material change in fair value, Revaluations are made for the
entire class of long leasehold property and with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount docs
not differ matevially from that which would be determined using fair values at the date of the statement
of financial position. Any accumulated depreciation ar the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asser.

Any revaluation increase arising on rthe revaluation is eredited to the revaluation reserve unless ir reverses
a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in the profit or loss, in which case, the
increase is credited to profit or loss wo the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carrying
amount arising on the revaluadon is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no furure economic benefirs are
expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognirtion represent the difference
berween the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and are included in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period of derecognition.

Depreciation is provided at rates intended to write off the cost of the assets or revalued amounts over
their expected usetul lives, The annual rates used are as follows:

Long leasehold property 2% Straight line on a monthly basis
Plant and machinery 7% Straight line on a monthly basis
Office equipment 20% Straight line on a monthly basis
Motor vehicles 20% Straight line on a monthly basis
Furniture and fittings 10% Straight line on a monthly basis

Fixtures 5-10% Straight line on a monthly basis
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4.11 Impairment testing of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For the purposes of assessing impainment, assets are grouped at the lowese levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash-generatng unics). As a resul, some assers are tested individually for impairment
and some are reseed ar cash-generating unic level,

All individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever evenes or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's carrving amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. To determine the value in use, the group’s management estimates expected future cash flows from
each cash-generadng unir and determines a suirable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect their
respective risk profiles as assessed by the group’s management.

[mpairment losscs are tecognised immediately in the statements of profit or loss. Impaitment losses for eash-
generating units are charged pro rita w the assets in the cash-generating unit. All assets are subsequently
reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment
charge that has been recognised is reversed if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount cxceeds 1ts carrying
amaount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extenr that the asser’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

4.12 Leases
The group as a lessee

Hor conrracts entered into, the group considers whether a contract is, or conrains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asser) for a period of
rime in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the group assesses whether the contract meets
three key evaluarions which are whether;

e the contract contains an identified assct, which is cither explicitly identified in the contract ot implicitly
spectfied by being idendfied at the time the asser is made available to the group;

e the group has the right to obtain substandally all of the cconomic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its nghts within the defined scope of the contract; and

e the group has the righe to direct the use of the identified asser throughout the period of use. The group
assesses whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the
period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the group recognises a right of use asser and a lease liability on the statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asser is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of
the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the group, an estimare of any costs to dismantle and remove
the asset ar the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the commencement date (net of
any incentves received).

The group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the righr-of-use asser or the end of the lease term.
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At lease commencement date, the group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at thar date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
group’s incremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain o be exercised.

Subsequent ta initial measutement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest.
1t is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

On the statement of financial position, the group has opted to disclose the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
as separate financial statement line irems.

Operating leases as a lessee

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the
statements of prnﬂt or loss on a m.m.ight line basis over the lease term, where the lessce does not bear
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership associated with the asser. Associated costs, such as
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

413 Investment property

Investment properey is property held to earn rentals or for eapital appreciation or both. lavestment
properry is recognised as an assee when it is probable thar the future economic benefits thar are associared
with the investment property will flow to the enterprise and the cost can be measured reliably. Investment
property is initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to inital récognition, investment property is stated at fair value unless the investment property
is classified or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, in which case, the investment
properry 18 measured ar the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of investment property are recognised in profir or loss in the period in
which the changes arise. The fair value movement on investment property, net of tax, is reclassified in the
statement of changes in equity from retained carnings to the revaluation rescrve.

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
furure economic benefits are expecred from s disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition represent the
difference berween the ner disposal of proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and are recognised in
the statements of profit or loss and ather comprehensive income in rhe period of derecognition.

4.14 Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is included in the company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment loss that may have arisen, Income from investment is recogniscd only to the extent of distributions
received by the company from post-acquisiion profics. Distribunions received in excess of such profits are
regarded as a recovery of the investment and are recognised as a reduction of the cost of the investment.

At each reportng date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its investments in subsidiarics to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment and, if any such indicaton exists, the recoverable amount of the
investment is estmated. An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an investment
exceeds its recovetable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. An impairment loss that has been previously recognised is reversed if the carrying amount of the
investment exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent thar the carrying
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amount of the investnent does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
impairment [oss had been previously recognised. Impairment losses and reversals are recognised immediacely
in statements of profic or loss.

4.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and ner realisable value. Cosr includes all expenses direcrly
artributable to acquiring the inventories and to bringing them rto their exisring location and condition. Financing
costs are not taken into consideration, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less any applicable sclling expenses.

4.16 Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group and company become a party w the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assers are derccognised when the contracrual rights o the cash flows from the financial asser expire,
or when the finanecial asser and all substantial risks and rewards are rransferred. A financial bability 1s
derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted
for transacton costs (where applicable).

Financial assers are classified into the following categories:

* amortised cost
e fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI),

The group and company do not have any financial assets categorised as FVTPL and FVOCI in the periods
presented.

The classification is determined by both:

o the entity’s business model for managing the financial assct; and
o the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the statements of profit or loss are
presented within ‘finance costs’ or “finance income’,

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financiedd anrett af amoriized cost

Financial assers are measured ar amortsed cost if the assets meet the following condidons (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

o they are held within a business model whose objectve is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

® the contactual terms of the financial assets give rse to cash flows thar are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount ourstanding,
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After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest method. Discounting
is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The group and company’s cash and eash equivalents,
loans and teceivables fall into this category of financial instruments,

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9% impairment requirements use forward-looking information to recognise expected credit losses — the
‘expecred credit loss (HCL) model’, Instruments within the scope of the new requirements included loans and
other debe-type tinancial assers measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, trade receivables, contract assets
recognised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments and some financial guarantee contraces (for
the issuet) that are not measured ar fair value through profic or loss.

The group and company consider a broad mange of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credir losses, including past events, current condidons, reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affecr the expecred collectability of the furure cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made berween:

e financial instruments that have not deteriorated significandy in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low eredir risk {*Stage 1); and

e financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credic quality since initial recognidon
and whose credit risk is nor low (*Srage 2.

‘Srage 3" would cover financial assers rhar have objective evidence of impairmenr ar che reporting dare.

“12-month expected credit losses” are recognised for the first eategory while “lifetime expecred eredir losses”
are recognised for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The group and company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, rade and other payables and lease liabilinies.

Financial liabilivies are inigally measured ar fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the group and the company designate a financial liability at fair value through profir or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair valuc that are reported in the
statements of profit or loss are included within *finance costs’ or *finance income”’,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assers and liabilites are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial positon
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to serte
on 4 net basis, or realise the asset and settde the labilior simultaneously.

417 Income taxes

Tax expensc recognised in the statements of profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred rax and current tax
not recognised in other comprehensive income or divectly in equity.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid ar the reporting date. Current tax is payable
on taxable profit, which differs from the profit in the financial statements, Calculadon of current tax 15 based
on rax rates and tax laws that have been enacted ar substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred income taxes are caleulared using the liabiliey method on temporary differences between the earrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial
recognition of an assct or liability unless the related transacton is a business combination or affects tax or
accounting profit,

Deferred ax assers and linbilites are caleulared, withour discounting, at tax rates thatare expected o apply o
their tespective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred rax liabilities ave abvays provided for in full.

Deferred rax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable thar they will be able to be urilised againse
future taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the group and company have a right and intention to set
off current tax assets and liabilities from the same taxadon authority,

Changes in deferred rax assers or liabilides are recognised as 2 component of ax income or expense in the
statements of profic or loss, excepr where they relate to items rhar are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or cquity, respectively.

4.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. Bank overdrafts are included in
liabilities.

4.19 Equity and reserves

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premium received on issue of the share capiral. Any transaction costs

associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax
benefits,

Revaluation surplus represents the increase in fair value of property.

Shareholders® loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable ar the discretion of the group and the
company. Consequently, this has been classified with equiry.

Retained earnings (accumulated losses) include all current and prior period resulrs,

4,20 Employee benefits

The group and company contribure towards the state pension in accordance with local legislation. The
only obligation of the group and company is to make the required contributions. Costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when present obligatons as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow
of economic resources from the group or company and amounts can be estimated reliably, Timing or amount
of the outflow may still be uncereain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commirment that has resulted from past events, for example, product warranties granted, legal disputes or
ONELOUS CONEEACES.



Busy Bee Finance PLC 30
Report and consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 November 2023

Restructuring provisions are recognised only if a detailed formal plan for the restructuring has been develaped
and implemented, or management has at least announced the plan's main features to those affecred by it.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions are measured ar the esumated expenditure required to settle the present obligaton, based on the
maost reliable evidence available at the reparting date, including rhe risks and uncerrainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligadons, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligatons is considered
improbable or remote, no liability 1s recognised.

All provisions are reviewed ar each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.22 Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty

When preparing the group and company’s financial statements, management makes a number of judgements,

estimates and assumprions about the recognition and measurement of assers, Labilides, revenuc and cxpenses

The following are judgemenrs made by management in applying the accounnng policies of the group and
company that have the most significant effect on these financial statements.

Significant management judgements
Recognition of provision and contingencies

Judgement is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. Policics on
recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in note 4.21,

Recognition of deferred tax asset

The extent to which deferred tax asset can be tecognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the
proup and company’s furure taxable income against which the deferred tax asser can be urilised. The assessment
is based on the latest approved budger forecast and if a positive forecast of taxable income indicates the
probable use of a deferred tax asset thar deferved rax asset is recognised in full,

Estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assers, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantally
different.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

The group estimares the useful lives of plant and equipment based on the period over which the assers are
expeeted to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of plant and equipment are reviewed periodically
and are updared if expeetations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, rechnieal or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.
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Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure leasc liabilidies. The IBR is the rate of interese that the group would have w
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obrain an asser of a similar
value ro the right-of-use asser in a similar economic enviconment. The IBR therefore reflects whar the group
‘would have ro pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rares are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the company’s stand-alone credic rating),

Inventories

The company determines whether there are damaged, obsolete and slow moving inventories periodically o
evaluare the adequacy of the allowance for inventories written down. This requires an esfimation of the
expected future saleability of inventory items based on a review of the ageing of inventory items.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimartes the recoverable amount of each asser or a cash-generating unic
based on expected future cash flows and uses an interese rare to calculate the presenc value of those cash flows,
Estimarion uncerrainty relates to assumptions abour future operating resules and the determination of a suirable
discount rate. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected
in the financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in those assumptions may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have a material
adverse effect on the results of operarions.

5 Revenue

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Service fees - - 486,000 486,000
Rental income 146,941 147,213 - -
Royalty income 351,103 327418 - -
Retail income 6,257,639 5,847,637 - -
6,755,683 6,322,269 486,000 486,000

There are no direct operating costs associnted witch service fees.

6 Interest income
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € 3 €

Interest income from group companies 1,624 - 269,880 270,152
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T Other income

Other income
Covid wage supplement

8 Finance costs

Interest on debt securities in issue

Interest on bank loans

Interes! expense on lease liability

9 Profit (loss) before tax

Profit (loss) before taxation is stated after charging:

Staff costs
Directors’ remuneration
Auditors' remuneration

Depreciation and amortisation

Tax compliance feas

Wages and salaries
Social securities
Wages recharged

32

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
20,282 - - -
- 196,553 - 52,377
20,282 156,553 - 52,377
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
248708 250,000 249708 250,000
22,293 20,575 1,624 -
435,223 44,875 - -
317,224 315,450 251,332 250,000
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
1,508,950 1,924,692 136,544 282,809
221,486 215,641 221,486 215,641
13,040 9,710 4,300 4,100
558,239 546,151 - -
1,905 1.945 460 440
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
3,515,046 3,867,781 741,310 783,982
250,923 244 480 35,521 35,354
(2,034,533)  (1,971,928) (418,801) (310,886)
1,731,436 2,140,333 358,030 508,450

The average number of employees (based pro-rara on a 40-hour week) during the year were;

Administration
Operations

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
No. No. No. No.
13 13 11 11
123 132 5 i)
136 145 16 17
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10 Tax (expense) income

The relationship berween the expected tax (expense) income based on the effective tax rate of Busy Bee Finance
PLC at 35% (2022: 35%) and the tax {expense} income actually recognised in the statements of profit or loss
can be reconciled as tollows:

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Profit (loss) before tax 609,944 453,124 (37.027) {50.198)
Tax rate 35% 35% 35% 35%
Expected tax (expense) income at the
applicable rate {213,480) (158,593) 12,959 17,569
Tax effect of permanent differences - 184,130 - -
Disallowed expenses {11,962) (42,335) - -
Group loss surrendered at no cost - 11,003 -
Ex-gratia payments (6,926) - (6,926)
Movement in unutilised tax cradits 73,191 - -
Tax (expense) income (159,177) (5,795) 6,033 17,569
Comprising:
Current tax {13,285) (2,2158) - -
Deferred tax {145,892) (3,580) 6,033 17,569
(159,177) (5,795) 6,033 17,569

11 Earnings per share

The earnings per share has been calculated on the group profit for the year of € 450,767 (2022: € 447,329)
divided by the number of shares in issuc as at year end.

The Group
2023 2022
No MNo
Weighted average number of shares in issue 20,000 50,000
€ €

Earnings per shars 8.02 8.95
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12 Intangible assets - The group

Brand Software Total
€ € €
Cost
At 1 December 2021 1,500,000 116,103 1,616,103
Additions - 18,369 18,369
At 30 November 2022 1,500,000 134,472 1,634,472
At 1 December 2022 1,500,000 134,472 1,634,472
Additions - ® = . =
At 30 November 2023 1,500, (I'tlll} 134, 4?2 1,634,472
Amortisation
At 1 December 2021 - 29,204 29,204
Charge for the year - 26,026 26,026
At 30 November 2022 - 55,230 55,230
Al 1 December 2022 - 55,230 55,230
Charge for the year - 27,163 27,163
At 30 November 2023 - 82,393 82,393
Carrying amount S -
At 30 November 2022 1,500,000 79,242 1,579,242
At 30 November 2023 1,500,000 52,079 1,552,079

The group, through Busy Bee [P Limired, acquired the “Busy Bee” brand from the parent company for a
considerarion of € 1,500,000, This value was determined by mdcpcndcnt valuers using the Rovalry Relief
method on the basis of the projected income statements of the business as at the end of 2018,

Following the above acquisition, the group entered into an agreement with related parties by virtue of which
the latter acquited the right to use the “Busy Bee” brand on their products against a payment of 4% (2022
4%) of revenue generated by them. For the year ended 30 November 2023, the group received royalty fees
amounting ta € 351,103 (2022: € 327 419).

The value of the brand was determined by discounting the forceast future cash flows representing royalty
payments saved by for a six-year explicit period 2024 - 2029. The following are the key assumptions
underlying the projections:

e revenue derived from use of the Busy Bee brand is based on operational projections. Revenue is
assumed to increase by 2% per annum,
® adiscount rate of 12.8% was applied to the operating projections.

The brand was tested for impnirmcn.r by the directors whose work confirmed that since the PLEF"[L"LL‘iDI‘L of
the valuation on which the transaction was based in 2019 there were no material changes which require the
recogrution of an impairment charge as ar 30 November 2023,
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The fair value of the long leaschold property of the group is based on the valuation carnied our by an
independent architecr dated 14 November 2022, The archirect is qualified and has experience in the valuatian
of properties of similar Iocarons and caregories. No revaluation of property was performed in 2023,

Details of the long leaschold property and the information about the fair value hierarchy as ar 30 November
2022 and 2023 arc as follows:

Date of

Type of property Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total valuation
€ € € €

Commercial property - - 3.680,000 3,680,000 14.11.2022

There were no mansfers between the hierarchy levels during the period.

For long leaschold property categorised under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the following approach and
inpues were used:

Type of property Valuation technique Inpuis Sensitivity

Commercial property Income approach Capitalisation rate at 8% The higher the
a yearly rental income of capitalisation rate and the
€ 659,350 and a sinking  sinking fund rate, the lower
fund at the rate of 3%, the fair value.
net of the other property,
plant and equipmentat  The higher the rental
the date of valuation. income, the higher the fair

value.

14 Right-of-use asset - The group

Details of the group’s right-af-use asser and irs carrying amount can be analysed as follows:

Leased
property
€

Cost

At 1 December 2021 [ at 30 November 2022
At 1 December 2022 [ at 30 November 2023

Accumulated depreciation

579,110

579,110

At 1 December 2021 18,762
Charge for the year 9,382
At 30 November 2022 28,144
At 1 December 2022 28,144
Charge for the year 9,382
At 30 November 2023 37,526
Carrying amount at 30 November 2022 550,966
Carrying amount at 30 November 2023 541,584

The depreciation charge on right-of-use assets was included in the statements of profit or loss under

“administrative cxpenses’.
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15 Investment property — The group

Freehold
land and
buildings
€
Fair value
At 1 Decamber 2021 3,885,000
Movement in fair value 525,000
At 30 November 2022 4,410,000
At 1 December 2022 f 30 November 2023 4,410,000
Carrying amount
At 30 November 2022 4,410,000
At 30 November 2023 4,410,000

The fair values of immovable properties have been arrived at by independent valuers not related to the
group having appropriate qualificarions and experience in the valuation of properties in Malw. The fair
value of the investment property is based on the estimated marker value of the property as per architect’s
valuation dated 14 November 2022, Changes in the carrving amounts presented in the statement of
financial positon can be summarised as follows:

Derails of the investment property and the information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 November
2022 and 2023 arc as follows:

Type of property Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Date of

€ € € € Valuation
Commercial property - 1,660,000 - 1,660,000 14.11.2022
Commercial property - - 1,220,000 1,220,000 14.11.2022
Residential - 1,530,000 - 1,530,000 14,11.2022
Total - 3,190,000 1,220,000 4,410,000

There was no revaluarion of investment propercy in 2023,

For investment property categorised under Level 2 of the fair value of hierarchy, the following approaches on
inpurs were used:

Type of property Valuation technigque Inputs

Commercial property amounting to Market approach The value of the property was based on the
€ 1,660,000 (2022: € 1,660,000} selling price of similar commercial property.
Residential property amounting to Market approach The value of the property was based on

€ 1,530,000 (2022: € 1,530,000} market prices for comparable advertised

properties laking into account the size, fit out
of the subject units, location of the property
and current situation of the residential property
market, Valuation was based on a
conservative rate of € 1,800/sq.m over the
entire area.
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For the investment property categorised under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the following approach and
inputs were used:

Type of property Valuation technigue  Inputs Sensitivity
Commercial property Income approach Capitalisation rate of 6.5%  The higher the capitalisation rate, the
and yearly rental income of lower the fair value. The higher the
€ 63,000 (2022: € 63,000). rental Income, the higher the fair
value.

16 Investment in subsidiaries - The company

The amount stated in the statements of financial posidon is analysed as follows:

€
Cost
At 30 November 2022 / At 30 November 2023 102,400
Ser out the below details of the subsidiaries held directy by the group:
Subsidiary companies Registered Office Percentage  Nature of the
Holding business
2023 2022
W o
Busy Bee Propertics Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina LO0 100 Immovable property
Limited Road, Central Business District,
Birkirkara, CBD 4010, Malta
Busy Bee IP Limired Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina 100 100 Intellectual property
Road, Central Business District,
Burkirkara, CBD 4010, Malwa
Busy Bee Manufacturing  Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina LoD [{10) Manufacturing
Limited Road, Central Business District,
Bukirkara, CBD 4010, Malta
17 Deferred tax
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Unabsorbed tax losses and capital allowances 540,286 800,997 13,596 19,655
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation (415,574) {443,082) - =
Unabsorbed tax credit 2,083,926 2,010,735 - -
Right of use asset 20,693 15,749 - -
Revaluation of property {408,672} (408,672) - -
Intangible asset (525,000) (525,000) - -
Provision for expected credit loss 9,176 12,092 -

1,304,835 1,450,727 25,688 19,655
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18 Loans and receivables

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € 3
Financial assets:
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary 397,753 - 287,753 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 5,460,000 5,460,000
Accrued incoma 59,064 50,535 - -
Provision for expected credit loss {2,180) - {29,803} -
Loans and receivables 454,637 50,535 5,827,860 5,460,000
Comprising:
Non-current 429 456 50,535 5,802 679 5,460,000
Current 25,181 - 25,181 -
454,637 50,535 5,827 860 5,460,000

Loans due from subsidiaries amounting to € 4,860,0000 (2022: € 4,860,000) arc unsccured, bear interest at
5.5% per annum and are repayable by 28 June 2029, Loans to subsidiary amounting to € 600,000 (2022:
€ 600,000) are unsecured, interest free and repayable at the discretion of the subsidiary.

During the current vear, the company granted a loan of € 630,000 to a fellow subsidiary. The outstanding
balance as at vear end amounts to € 397,753, The remaining balance of € 252,247 was unitsed as at year end.
The loan is subjeet to 3% interest per annum and tepayable by monthly instalments of € 5,800. Furthermore,
the loan has a moratorium of one year from drawdown date.

19 Inventories

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Goods held for re-sale 738 461 788,609 - -

In 2023, a toral of € 2,810,551 (2022: € 2,632,263) of inventories was included in the statements of profir or
losss.

20 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consist of the following:

The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Current
Trade receivables 36,668 40,786 = =
Amount due from ultimate parent 45,723 - - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 445,403 337N
Amounts due from related parties 2,283,764 1,244,036 7,952 “
Provision for expected credit loss (24,037) - (4,656) -
Accrued income 4,420 5179 114,230 115,704
Other recelvables 7,004 7,265 - -
Financial assets 2,353,542 1,297,266 562,929 429,475
Advance payments 3,223 - 3,222 -
Frepayments 16,220 8,286 5,833 5,919

Trade and other receivables — current 2,372,985 1,305,552 571,984 435,394
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Amounts owed from ultimate parent, subsidiaties and related parties are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed date of repayment.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables is considered a reasonable approximadon of fair value,

21 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € 13 €
Bank deposits 298,382 316,397 101,860 97,225
Cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of financial position/cash flows 208,382 316,397 101,860 a7,225

The group and company did not hayve any restricdons on its cash in hand and at bank ar year end.

22 Called up issued share capital

The share capiral of Busy Bee Finance PLC consists only of ordinary shares with a par value of € 1. All shares
are equally eligible ro receive dividends and repayment of capital, and represent one vote ar the sharcholders’
meeting of the company.

2023 2022
€ €
Shares issued and fully paid at 30 November _
50,000 ordinary shares of € 1 each 50,000 50,000
Shares authorised at 30 November
50,000 ordinary shares of € 1 each 50,000 50,000

23 Shareholder's loan

Sharcholder’s loan is unsecured, interest-free and is repayable at the option of the borrower. This loan has
therefore been classified with equity,
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24 Debt securities in issue

The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

€ € € €

5% unsecured bonds redeemable 2029 4,899,387 4,882,225 4,895 887 4,882,225

Nominal value

5% unsecured bonds redeemable 2029 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issue cost 174,916 174,916 174,916 174,916
Accumulated amoriisation (74,803) (57,141) {74,803) (57,141)
Clesing net book amount 100,113 117,775 100,113 117,775
Amortised cost at 30 November 4,899,887 4,882,225 4,890 887 4,882,225
Falling due within one year 17 662 17,662 17,662 17,662
Falling due between two to five years 70,648 70,648 70,648 70,648
Falling due between aver five years 4,811,577 4,793,915 4,811,577 4,793915
4,890 887 4,882,225 4,899,887 4,882 225

By virtue of the company admission document dated 17 June 2019, the company has issued 5,000,000 5%
unsecured bonds of a nominal value of € 100 per bond. The bonds are redeemable at their nominal value on
28 June 2029,

Interest on the bonds is due and payable annually on 28 June of each year.
The bonds have been admitted on Prospects MTF, a multilateral trading facility operared by the Malra Srock

Exchange. The carrying amount of the bonds 1s net of direct issue costs of € 100,113 (2022: € 117,775) which
are being amortised over the life of the bonds,

25 Borrowings

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
4 € € €

Falling due within one year:
Bank loan 90,379 60,243 25,181 -
Short-term borrowings 90,379 60,243 25,181 -
Falling due befween two and five years:
Bank loan 623,128 408,059 288 967 E
Amounts owed to other related parties 155,000 155,000 - -
Long-term borrowings 778,128 564,059 288,967 -

Total borrowings 868,507 624,302 314,148 -
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Bank loans

One of the subsidiaries has a bank loan amounung to € 399,360 (2022: € 469,302). The loan is secured by a
general hyporhec over the subsidiary's asserts, by a special hypothee over property owned by the subsidiary, by
pledges raken over various insurance policies, by guarantees of the parent company, and by personal
guarantees of the directors. It bears interest ar 4% per annum and is repayable by monthly instalments of

€ 7,409 inclusive of interest. After expiry of a fixed-rate period of four yeirs, the loan is repayable by monthly
instalments of € 7,551,

The company has a bank loan amounting to € 630,000. The utilised amount as at year end amounted to

€ 314,148, The unutlised amount was withdrawn by the company after year end. The loan is secured by
guarantees given by the parent company and a subsidiary. [t bears interest ar 3% per annum and is repayable
by monthly instalments of € 5,800 inclusive of interest. Furthermore, the loan has 2 moratorium of one vear
from drawdown date.

The company has an unutilised bank loan amounting to € 200,000, The facility is to be repaid over a period
of twelve vears inclusive of a one-year moratorium. It bears interest at 3% per annum and is repayable by
monthly instalments of € 1,783 inclusive of interest.

Amounts owed to other related parties

Amounts owed to other relared partes are unsecured, nterest-free and have no fixed date of repayment.

26 Lease liability - the group

Lease liability is included in the statements of financial positdon as follows:

2023 2022

3 3

Mon-current 296,002 591,380
596,002 591,390

The group has a lease for the Busy Bee Mrichel Factory, The lease is included as a right-of-use assct in the
statements of financial positon (see note 14),

Each lease generally imposes a restriction thar, unless there 15 a conrractual righe for the group to subler the
asset to another party, the right-of-use asser can only be used by the group. Leases are cither non-cancellable
or may only be cancelled by incurring a substantive termination fee. The group is prohibited from lending or
transferring the underlving leased assers. Upon termination, the right-of-use assets shall be returned to the
lender in good condition as when received by the group, except for reasonable wear and tear. The group
shall ensure that these assets are at all dmes kepr in a good state of repair and return in their original
condition at the end of the lease.

Mo of right-of- Range of  Average Mo of leases No of leases with
use assels remaining remaining with extension termination
Right-of-use asset leased term lease term options options

Mriehel Factory 1 66 years 66 years - -
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The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments ar
3 November 2023 were as follows:

Minimum lease payments

Later than one
Not later than year but not later Later than
one year than five years five years Total
€ € € €
30 November 2023
Lease payments 40,477 168,487 2,923,337 3,132,301
Finance charges {45,597} (185,901) (2,304,801) (2,536,299)
Net present values (5,120) (17,414) 618,536 596,002
Future minimum lease payments at 30 November 2022 were as follows:
Minimum lease payments
Later than one
Mot later than year but not later Later than
one year than five years five years Total
€ € € €
30 November 2022
Lease payments 40,477 166,463 2,965,801 3172841
Finance charges {45,222) (184.,546) (2,351,683) (2,581,451)
Net present values {4,745) (18,083) 614,218 591,390
27 Trade and other payables
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € £ €
Current
Trade payables 1,226,680 999,906 107,217 10,524
Amounts owed to parent company 144,760 149,006 144,667 144 669
Amounts owed to subsidiary = - 368,440 262 667
Amounts owed to other related parties 41,430 45,082 41,430 10,456
Accruals 218,962 317,695 122,886 120,360
Other payables 56,268 65,185 5 .
Financial liabilities 1,688,110 1,576,874 784,650 548 676
Other creditors 64,606 158,765 14,615 39,287
Indirect taxes 129,873 88,741 21,870 18,870
Deferred income 3,134 - - -
Trade and other payables 1,885,723 1,834,380 821,135 606,833

Amounts owed o parent company, subsidiary and other related parties are unsecured, interest free and have
no fixed date of repayment,

28 Financial instrument risk

Risk management objectives and policies

The group and company are exposed to vatious risks in relation to financial instruments, The group and
company’s financial assets and liabilides by category are summarised in note 28.4. The main types of risks are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,
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The group and company’s risk management is coordinated by the ditectors and focuses on actively securing
the group and company’s short to medium term cash flows by mininusing the exposure to fnancial risk,

The group and company do not actvely engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
do they write opoons. The most significant financial nisk o which the group and company are exposed w are
described below.

28.1 Credit risk

Credir risk is the risk thar a counterparty fails to dischatge an obligation to the group or company. The group
and company’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised ar the
reporting date, as summarised below:

The Group The Company

Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Classes of financial assets carrying

amounts:

Loans and receivables 18 454 637 50,535 5827,860 5,460,000
Trade and other receivables 20 2,353,642 1,297 266 562,929 429 475
Cash and cash equivalents 21 298,382 316,397 101,860 97,225
3,106,561 1,664,198 6,492,649 5,986,700

The group and company continuously monitor defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified cither
individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credic risk controls,

The group and company assess the credir quality of customers taking into account the financial position, past
experience and other factors, The group and company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of cach customer. The group and company’s policies are to deal only with
creditworthy counterpartics. The group has policies in place to ensure that it transacts with customers with
appropriate and acceptable credit history, The ongoing credir risk is managed through regular review of ageing
analysis, together with credit limits per customer. The management menitors the performance of its trade
receivables on a regular basis to identify credit losses, which are inherent in group and company’s debrors,
taking into account historical experience in collection of receivables. Management does nor expect any Iosses
from non-performance by these customers,

Trade veceivalies

Based on the amount of trade receivables at vear end, management concluded thar the expected credit loss
which could result on these amounts would not be material to these Anancial statements.

Otber financial assets at amortised cost

Orcher financial assets at amortised cost include related party receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

With respect to other balances with related parties (as disclosed in notes 18 and 20), the group and company
assess the credit quality of these related parties by raking into account financial positon, performance and
other factors. In measuring the expected credit losses in these balances, management detcrmined the
impairment provision independently from third party receivables and as at 50 November 2022 and 2023, the
impairment is disclosed in notes 18 and 20, Managemenr akes cognisance of the related party relarionship
with these entities and settlement arrangements in place and does not expecr any losses from non-
performance or defaulr,
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The group and company hold money exclusively with an institution having high quality external eredic
atings, The cash and cash equivalents held with such bank at 30 November 2022 and 2025 are callable on
demand. The bank with whom cash and cash equivalent are held has a credir rating of BBB- by Standard and
Poor's Management considers the probabiliey of defaule from such bank o be close to zero and rhe amounr
calculated using the 12-monrh expected eredit loss model to be very insignificant. Therefore, based on the
above, no loss allowance has been recognised by the group and company.

28.2 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is that the group and company might be unable to meet their obligations. The group and
company manage their liquidity needs through yearly cash flow forecasts by carcfully monitoring expecred
cash inflows and outflows on a monthly basis. The group and company s hqllldlf} tisk is not deemed to be
significant in view of the matching of cash inflows and outflows ar ising trom L\chml mararities of finaneial
inscruments, as well as the group and company’s committed borrowing faciliries that it can access to meer
liquidity needs.

As at 30 November 2023, the non-derivative financial liabilides have contractual maturities (including
interest payments where applicable) as summarised below:

The Group Current MNon-current
Later than 5
30 November 2023 Within 1 year 1to 5 years years
€ € €
Debt securities in issue 17,662 70,648 4,811,977
Borrowings 136,681 663 955 450,456
Trade and other payables 1,688,110 - -
Lease liability 40,477 168,487 2,923,337
Total 1,882,930 903,090 8,185,370
The Company Current Mon-current
Later than S
30 November 2023 Within 1 year 1to 5 years years
€ € €
Debt securities in issue 17,662 70,648 4,811,577
Borrowings 46,069 278,403 450,456
Trade and other payables 784,650 -

Total ] 848,381 349,051 5,262,033
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This compares to the maturity of non-derivatuve financial liabilities in the previous reportng periods as

follows:

The Group
30 November 2022

Debt securities in issue
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liability

Total

The Company

30 November 2022

Debt securities in issus
Trade and other payables
Total

28.3 Market Risk

Foreign currency risk

Current Non-current
Later than §
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years years
€ € €
17,662 70,648 4,793,915
60,243 564,059 -
1,576,874 = -
- 40,477 166,463 2,965,901
1,695,256 801,170 7,759,816
Current Non-current
Later than 5
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years years
€ € €
17 662 70,648 4,793,015
548,676 ... S——-
566,338 70,648 4,793,915

The group and company teansact business mainly in eurn. Exposure ro currency exchange rates arise from
the group’s purchase of foreign eutrency to/from supplicrs. However, foreign curtency denominated
financial assets and liabilities at the end of the financial reporting date under review are deemed negligible.

Accordingly, the group’s exposure o foreign exchange risk is not significant and a sensidvity analysis for
foreign exchange risk disclosing how profic or loss and equity would have been affeered by changes in
foreign exchange rates that were reasonably possible art the reporting date is deemed not necessary.

Interest rate risk

The group 15 exposed to changes in market interest rares through its borrowings at variable interest rates.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the vear to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of +/- 100 basis points, with effect from the beginning of the year. These changes are
considered o be reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions,

The calculations are based on the group and company’s financial inseruments held ar the reporting dare of
the reparting period under review that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All orther variables are held

constant

The Group

30 November 2023

30 November 2022

Profit (loss) for the year

€ €
100 bp -100 bp
7,135 {7,135)

4,693 (4,693)
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28.4 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the group and company’s financial assets and liabiliries as recognised at the reporting
date of the reporting period under review may also be categorised as follows. See note 4.16 for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

The Group The Company
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Non-current
Loans and receivables 18 429,456 50,535 5,802,679 5,460,000
Current
Loans and receivables 18 25,181 - 25,181 <
Trade and other receivables 20 2,353,542 1,297 266 562,929 429475
Cash and cash equivalents 21 298,382 316,397 101.860 97,225
2,677,105 1,613,663 689,970 526,700
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cosk
Non-current
Cebt securities in issue 24 4. 882,225 4,864,563 4 882,225 4 864,563
Borrowings 25 778,128 64,059 288 967 -
Lease liability 26 596,002 591,390 - -
6,256,355 6,020,012 5,171,192 4,864,563
Current
Debt securities in issue 24 17,662 17,662 17,662 17,662
Borrowings 25 90,379 60,243 25,181 -
Trade and other payables 27 1,688,110 1,576,874 784 650 548678
1,796,151 1,654,779 827,493 566,338
29 Contingent liabilities
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Guarantees given 1o secure the debt 1,249,358 469,302 850,000 -
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30 Related parties

The parent company of Busy Bee Finance PLC is Busy Bee Limited, which is incorporated in Malra. The
individual financial statements of the company are incorporated in the consolidared financial statements of
Busy Bee Limited. The registered address of the company is Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Mrichel,
Birkirkara CBD 4010, Malta. No individual holds a controlling interest in the equity of the parent company,

Ourstanding balances with related parties at period-end are disclosed in notes 18, 20, 23, 25 and 27 to these
financial statements,

The company entered into transactions with related parties as follows:

2023 2022
€ €
Transactions with other related parties
Interest income 269,880 270,152
Service fees income 486,000 486,000
Wages recharged to 418,801 310,886
The group entered into transactions with related partics as follows:
2023 2022
€ €
Transactions with other related parties
Rental income 126,040 126,818
Wages recharged to 2,034,533 1,833,250

Revenue 6,134,563 5,847 637
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31 Segment reporting

The group’s operations consist of the rent, royalties cafeterias and gelateria, outside catering and othet
income. The group’s business segments operate in the local market. An analysis by segment of the
group’s turnover and profitability Is set oun:

2023 Cafeteria & Outside
Rent Royalties gelateria catering Other Group
£ € € £ € €
Revenue 146,942 351,103 4254211 1,879,979 123,388 6,755,683
Segment results 142,354 288,477 702,052 310,240 20,378 1,463,501

Cafeteria & Outside
2022 Rent Royalties gelateria catering Other Group
£ € € £ € €
Revenue 147,213 327,419 4113749 1,615,328 118,560 6,322,269
Segment results 140,322 295,376 138,920 54,549 4,025 633,192
2023 2022
€ €
Interest incame 1.624 -
Other income 20,282 156,533
Movement in fair value of investment property = 525,000
Depreciation and amaortisation (558,239) (546,151)
Finance costs (317,224) (315,450
Profit before tax 609,944 453,124
Tax expense (159,177) (5,795)
Profit for the year 450,767 447,329

32 Post reporting date events

No adjusting or other significant non-adjustdng evenrs have occurred between the reporting dace and the date
of authorisation.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the sharcholders of Busy Bee Finance PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Busy Bee Finance PLC (“the company™) and of the group of
which it is the parent, set out on pages 13 to 49, which comprise the statements of financial position as at
30 November 2023, and the statements of profic or loss, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for the vear dhen ended, and notes o the financial starements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
company and the group as at 30 November 2023, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance wirh Internarional Financial Reporrng Standards (IFRSs) as adopred by the
European Union {EU), and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, Cap. 386 (the “Act™).

Qur opinion is consistent with our additional report to the audit committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audic in accordance with Internanonal Standards on Auditng (I5As). Our responsibilinies
under those srandards are further deseribed in the Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audir of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company and the group in accordanee with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrane
Haolders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act, Cap. 281 that are relevant to our audic
of the financal starements in Malea, We have fulfilled our other ethical eesponsibilines in accordance with these
requirements. We believe thar the audic evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate ro provide a
basis for our opinion. In conducting our audit we have remained independent of the company and the group
and have not provided any of the non-audit services prohibited by article 184 of the Acecountaney Profession
Act, Cap. 281, The non-audit services that we have provided to the company and the group during the year
ended 30 November 2023 are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit marrers are those matrers thar, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audir
of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters were addressed in the context of
out audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thercon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these martrers.
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Revenue from sale of products in the consoclidated financial statements
Key audit matter

The group recognises revenue from sale of products on goods supplicd to related partics. We considered
revenue from sale of producrs as a key audic marter since it is based on a significant volume of rransactions
and dircedv impacts the group’s profitability. The group’s disclosures on its revenue recognition policy is
presented in note 4.5 ro the financial statements.

How the key audit matter was addressed in onr andir

Our audit procedutes to address the risk of material misstatement relating to revenue from sale of products
included among others, testing the design and operating cffectiveness of the related parties internal controls
over recognition of revenues, performing substantive procedures over revenues of related parties and
recalculation of revenue from sale of products pertaining to the group.

Impairment testing on intangible assets in the consolidated financial statements
Key audit matter

Intangible assets comprising the “Busy Bee” brand with a cartying amount of € 1.5 million at 30 November
2023 are included on the group’s Statement of Financial Position as at that date.

Management is required to perform an assessment at least annually to establish whether intangible assets that
have an indefinite useful life should eondnue o be recognised, or if any impairment is required. The
impairmencassessment was based on the caleuladons which were prepared ro determine the considerarion thar
was set at the time the group acquired the brand.

We focussed on this area because of the significance of the amounr of intangible assets with indefinite useful
life owned by the group and which are recognised at balance sheet date. Moreover, the directors’ assessment
process is complex and judgmental and is based on assumptions which are affected by expected future marker
or economic condibdons.

How the key audit matter was addvessed in our audit

We evaluated the suitability and appropriateness of the impairment methodology applied by management and
engaged our internal valuation specialist resources to assess the reliability of the forecasts used and to challenge
the methodology used and the undetlying assumptions. We concluded thar the parameters utilised were
reasonable,

We communicared with management and those charged with governance and nored that they were able to
provide satsfactory responses o our questions. We also assessed che adequacy of the disclosures set our in
note 12 to the financial statements relating to intangible assets, Those disclosures explain that the directors
have assessed the carrying amount of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life as at 30 November 2023
and they concluded that the asset is recoverable and that there is no impairment in the value of the intangible
assers with an indetinire useful life,

Impairment testing on investment property in the consoclidated financial statements

The valuation of the group’s investment property is inherently subjective due to a number of factors such as
the individual nature of each property, its loeation and the expected future rerurns. Management has carried
out assessments for the valuations of the group’s properties which were last valued by independent archirects
in November 2022. As a result of their assessment the directors concluded that the valuations of the propertics
at 30 November 2022 remained unchanged and therefore no changes to the valuatons were reflected during
the current vear.

We focussed on this area because of the significance of the amount of investment properties owned by the
group and which ate tecognised at balance sheet date.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the properries included reviewing the internal assessments made
by the dirccrors and cnsuring that there were no significant changes to the independent architects valuarions
which were concluded in November 2022, We also discussed the valuations with management, the Audit
Committee and the directors and found that they were able to provide explanations to our questions.

We have also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures relating to investment propetties set out in note 13
these finaneial statements. Those disclosures explain chat the direcrors have assessed the carrying amount of
the investment properties as at 30 November 2023 and they concluded that the carrying amount is recoverable
and that there is no impairment in the value of the properties.

Assessment of carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and other loans due from subsidiaries
in the company financial statements

Key audit matter

Ar 30 November 2023 management carried out an assessment to establish whether the carrying amount of
investments in subsidiaries and loans due from subsidiaries and fellow subsidiary amounong to € 102,400 and
€ 5.8 million shown in notes 16 and 18 respectively of the financial statements of the company ar that date
should continue to be recognised, or if any impairment is required.

We focussed on this area because of the significance of the investments in subsidiaries and loans due from
subsidiaries.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

We evaluated rhe suitability and appropriateness of the impairment methodology applied by management and
concluded that the parameters utilised were reasonable.

We communicared with management and those charged with governance and noted that they were able to
provide satisfactory responses to our questions. We also assessed the financial position of the subsidiaries and
determined rhar the direcrors’ conclusion thar the carrying amount of investments in subsidianies and loans
due from subsidiaries are recoverable is reasonable.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises (i) the Directors’
report and (i) the Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance which we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our npinion on the financial starements does not cover the other information, including the Directors® report.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identfied above and, in doing so, consider whether the other informartion is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements or our knowledge obrained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

With respect to the Directors’ report, we also considered whether the Direcrors” report includes the disclosures
required by Ardcle 177 of the Act.
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Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

e The informartion given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

e the Directors® report has been prepared in accordance with the Act.

In addidon, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and the group and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we are requited to report if we have idenrified marerial misstarements in
the Directors’ report and other informartion that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor”s reporr. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accardance with IFRS as adopred by the EU and are properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, and for such internal contral as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements thar are free from marterial misscatement, whether due o fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s and the group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accountng unless the direcrors eicher intend o liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alrernative bur o do so. The direerars are responsible for overseeing the
company’s and the group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole arc frec
from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bur is not a guarantee that an audic conducred in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a marerial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
tor influenee the economie decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In terms of arucle 1794 (4) of the Act, the scope of our audit does not include assurance on the future viability
if the audited enncy or on the efficiency or effectuveness with which the directors have conducted or will
conducr the affairs of rthe enrey,

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audic. We also:

- Idendfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fravd ot
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not detecting a marterial
misstatement resuling from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, bur not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the company’s and group’s internal control.

= Ewaluare the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimares
and related disclosures made by management.
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- Conclude on the apptopriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
Lased on the audir evidence obtained, whether a marenal uncertainey exises related to cvents or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s and group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude thar & material uncertainty exists, we are required o draw atcention in our auditor’s report w the
refared disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequare, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obrained up to the dare of bur audiror’s reporr. However
future events or conditions may cause the company or the group to cease t continue 4s a going concern,

- Ewalvate the overall presentation, stmeture and content of the financial starements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial starements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
mannet that achieves fait presentation.

= Obmuin sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activitics within the group to express and opinion on the consolidared financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supetvision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicare with those charged wirth governance regarding; among other marters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audir findings, including any significant deficiencies 1n internal conerol that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the celevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all reladonships and other
marters thar may reasonahly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relared safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thase marters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current petiod and are therefore the key
audic matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure abour the marter or when, in exrremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicared in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to ourweigh the public interest benefir of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on Corporate governance statement

The Prospects MTF Rules (the ‘Rules) issued by the Malra Stock Exchange require the direcrors o prepare
and include in their Annual Report a Corporate governance statement providing an explanation of the extent
to which they have adopted the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures
that they have taken to ensure compliance throughout the accounting petiod with those Principles.

The Rules also require us, as the auditor of the company, to include a report on the Statement of Compliance
prepared by the direcrors.

We read the Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance and consider the implications for our report
if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matetial inconsistencies with the financial seatements
included in the Annual Report. Our responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this statement is
consistent with any other information included in the Annual Report.

We are nor required to, and we do not, consider wherher the Board’s statements on internal control included
in the Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the company’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

In our opinion, the Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance set out on pages 7 to 12 has been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Rules.
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Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
& We also have responsibilitics under the Companies Act, Cap 386 to repott to you if, in our opinion;
- adequate accounting records have not been kepr, or that returns adequare for our audic have nor been
received from branches nor visiced by us
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
- cermin disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made in the financial statements,
giving the required particulars in our report,
We have nothing ro reporr to you in respect of these responsibilities,

Auwditor tenure

We were appointed as auditors of the company on 12 November 2020 and therefore represents an engagement
of four years,

The engagement parmer on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s repare is Mark Bugeja.

Mark Bugepd (Partner) for and on behalf of
GRANT THORNTON
Certified Public Accountants

Faorr Business Centre

Tnq L-Intornjatur, Zone 1
Cenrral Business Disrrict
Birkitkara CBD 1050
Malra

28 March 2024



